
   

 

 

PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION 
A G E N D A 
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION Virtual Zoom Meeting 
REGULAR MEETING CITY HALL 
THURSDAY, August 13th, 2020 201 S. CORTEZ STREET 
9:00 AM PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
   
 
The following agenda will be considered by the PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION at its 
meeting to be held on August 13th, 2020 , Commissioners and public may attend the meeting 
through the use of a technological device via Zoom teleconferencing. Notice of this meeting is 
given pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-431.02. 
 
City of Prescott is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom Webinar. 
 
Topic: City of Prescott Planning & Zoning Commission  
Time: August 13th, 9:00 AM Arizona 
 
Join Zoom Webinar 
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89984625710 
 
Dial by telephone (if computer audio not available): 
 
1 346 248 7799 or 
1 669 900 6833 or 
1 929 205 6099 
 
Meeting ID: 899 8462 5710 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER- Housekeeping- Please keep your phone on mute unless you are 

speaking in order to minimize background noise. 
 

Please identify yourself each time you speak so that we can record your comments 
in the minutes and properly count motions and votes. 
 

II. ATTENDANCE 

 
III. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
1. Approval of the July 30, 2020 meeting minutes. 

 
2. SITE20-004, Site Plan Review for Phase 1 of the Grande Vita Development to include 

an integrated aging in place facility that will provide independent living units, assisted 
living units, and memory care on an approximate 8.96 acre parcel. Zoning: Business 
Regional (Business Regional) [Property Owner: Ehret Properties LLC, Burro Creek 
LLC, and Broyco Properties LLC; Applicant: J. Brown- Kevin B. Howard Architects; 

 

MEMBERS 
Don Michelman, Chair Greg Lazzell 
Ted Gambogi, Vice Chair George Lee   
Stan Goligoski Butch Tracey 
Thomas Hutchison  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89984625710


 
Site APN: 103-15-160A and 103-15-165; Location: Northwest Corner of E Robin Drive 
and SR 69]. 

 
3. SUP20-002, Special Use Permit to allow a portion of the proposed Banner Hospital 

building to be up to 75 feet in height, where zoning district height allowance is 50 feet. 
Property location is 3835 Willow Creek Road. Zoning: BG PAD (Business General 
Planned Area Development). [Property owner:  Prescott Whispering Rock, LLC.  
Applicant/Agent:  Banner Health. APN:  106-02-398, encompassing 20.82 acres] . 

 
 

 
IV. STAFF UPDATES 
  
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Prescott City Hall and on the 
City’s website on 08-06-2020 at 5:00 p.m. in accordance with the statement filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 
 

Michelle Shaw__For: 
Sarah Siep, City Clerk 
 

THE CITY OF PRESCOTT ENDEAVORS TO MAKE ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. 
With 72 hours advanced notice, special assistance can be provided for sight and/or hearing-impaired persons at this 
meeting. Reasonable accommodations will be made upon request for persons with disabilities or non-English speaking 
residents. Please call the City Clerk (928) 777-1272 to request an accommodation to participate in this public meeting. 
Prescott TDD number is (928) 445-6811. Additionally, free public relay service is available from Arizona Relay Service at 1-
800-367-8939 and more information at www.azrelay.org. 

http://www.azrelay.org/


 
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 1 of 3 
Minutes – July 30, 2020      

        PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
        MINUTES July 30, 2020 

               PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 

• MINUTES of the PRESCOTT PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING held on July 30th, 
2020 at 9:00 AM in Council Chambers and via ZOOM teleconferencing. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
   Chair Don Michelman called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.   
 

II. ATTENDANCE 
 

 
III. 

 REGULAR AGENDA ITEM 
 

1. Approval of the June 25th, 2020 Meeting Minutes. 
 

    A motion was made by Commissioner Gambogi to approve the June 25th, 2020 minutes.      
             The motion was seconded by Commissioner Lee and approved unanimously (7-0). 

 
 

2. Introduction for proposed Annexation, General Plan amendment and Master Plan for 
property known as Stringfield at Granite Mountain. Applicant is Jeff Davis; APN: 106-06-002C 
and a portion of 106-06-002D; County zoning is R1L-70 residential. 

 
Applicant Jeff Davis introduced himself as a local developer and contractor who has been 

working in Prescott for over 25 years. Mr. Davis was involved with the development of American 
Ranch and Prescott Lakes subdivisions, owns an interior design business downtown and currently 
builds luxury homes in the area. Irene Stringfield, the owner of Stringfield Ranch, approached Mr. 
Davis to develop a portion of her land into a subdivision similar to American Ranch. 

 
The current county zoning of the proposed development area is R1L-70 (Residential Site Built 

Only, 70,000 square foot minimum lot size). Mr. Davis explained that there will be a public trail 
easement through the middle of the development (from east to west) with pedestrian, equestrian 
and bicycle access. He explained that a 400 ft wide ‘corridor’ will be acquired from the state to 
connect the development to Williamson Valley Rd. The development will offer a mixture of lot sizes 
from ½  to 2 acres, which will appeal to a different type of consumer than that of many of the current 
developments (which typically have lots under ½ acre). Mr. Davis explained that the streets will be 
private and that the sewer will be a low pressure system, both of which will be maintained by the 
HOA. The HOA will also maintain landscaping leading in to the development.  

COMMISSIONERS STAFF MEMBERS 
Ted Gambogi George Worley, Planning Manager 
Don Michelman Tammy DeWitt, Community Planner 
George Lee Bryn Stotler, Community Dev. Director 
Thomas Hutchison Kaylee Nunez, Recording Secretary 
Stan Goligoski Jon Paladini, City Attorney 
Butch Tracey  
Gregory Lazzell COUNCIL 
 Councilman Steve Sischka, Liaison 

 (Absent) 
Councilman Phil Goode 
Councilwoman Billie Orr 
 



 
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 2 of 3 
Minutes – July 30, 2020      

Mr. Davis stated that open space will comprise approximately 34% of the total subdivision area. 
Stringfield at Granite Mountain will be developed in five phases with 264 lots total. An aerial 
conceptual map of the state land entry and trailhead was presented. Commissioner Lee asked what 
the timeline on the state land acquisition was. Community Development Director Bryn Stotler 
explained that the City initiated the application approximately a year ago and that the application is 
currently in the appraisal process. It is estimated to be completed by February 2021.  Mr. Worley 
explained the internal planning division timeline as well. 

 
Chair Michelman asked whether the homes will have sprinklers required. Jeff Davis explained 

that it is likely due to topography and the development having only one exit and entrance. 
Commissioner Hutchison questioned whether the trailhead parking lot size would be sufficient for 
the size of the development as well as public.  Mr. Davis believes it will, however, he also stated 
that that type of question would be better addressed by Joe Baynes (City of Prescott Recreation 
Services Director.) Commissioner Goligoski commented that there is some concern from neighbors 
about the 43 lots proposed on the Northeast end. Mr. Davis commented that the density was moved 
into that area as it is relatively flat (compared to the rest of the property) but that the density is still 
low compared to many of the current developments in the city. Director Stotler commented that the 
development will be a benefit to the city in that this property will be developed to city standards with 
utility infrastructure and enhanced public access to the Prescott Circle Trail. 

 
Vice Chair Gambogi commented that the trailhead will be a great improvement to the existing 

Circle Trail. Mr. Gambogi also asked for clarification on what size the smallest lots would be. Mr. 
Davis answered that they would be no less than ½ acre lots.  

 
Richard Mueller, a nearby resident, stated that he and his neighbors have a lot of concerns. He 

asked for clarification on the proposed city zoning, which is RE-2 acre (Residential Estate-2 Acre). 
He is concerned that there are several lots that will be well under the 2 acre size. Planning Manager 
Worley explained that the development is going to be a PAD (Planned Area Development), which 
allows flexibility to create smaller lots with dedication of increased open space. Mr. Mueller asked if 
residents would be allowed to have horses. Mr. Davis stated that there are no equestrian lots 
proposed. Mr. Mueller also asked if the development would abide by dark sky ordinances. Mr. Davis 
confirmed that it would. It was also asked whether the community would be gated. Mr. Davis stated 
he does not have a definitive answer to that question yet. 

 
Another nearby resident, Tony Reeves, asked whether the lots in the northeast section of Phase 

2 would have fencing. Mr. Davis stated that he hasn’t decided yet but that he does not like fencing 
in general, as it impedes landscape and views.   

 
Resident Bridgitte Krupke asked about the surrounding catchment basins, whether there was an 

assurance that they would not be encroached upon. Mr. Davis explained that a drainage report has 
been prepared in which the catchment basins expressly remain undisturbed.  

 
Resident Leslie Hoy addressed the state land acquisition and asked who was paying for it. City 

Attorney Jon Paladini explained that it was to be paid by the developer initially; however, further 
negotiations determined that having private streets would be more financially favorable to the city 
than having the developer pay for the state land.  Ms. Hoy also asked whether the bid amount 
would be approved at a public meeting prior to purchase; Mr. Paladini confirmed that it would. Ms. 
Hoy questioned whether a cost-benefit analysis would be performed. Mr. Paladini state that this 
would occur as part of the Prop 400 process.  

 
Councilwoman Orr commented that this development will bring a different and beneficial project 

type to the City and that she is excited to see it move forward.  
 



 
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 3 of 3 
Minutes – July 30, 2020      

Resident Bob Roberts questioned whether the existing petroglyphs would be preserved. Mr. 
Davis stated that he has not seen any, yet if there are he fully believes in preserving them. 

 
 Commissioner Lee asked Mr. Davis whether he plans on building any of the homes in the 

development; Mr. Davis said he is unsure at this time but would like to be involved in a few. 
 

 
 
 

3. CSP20-001 Amendment to the Comprehensive Sign Plan for Touchmark at the Ranch; 3174 E 
State Route 69; Property Owner: Touchmark at the Ranch, LLC; APN 103-20-713 

 
Planning Manager George Worley presented a visual of the existing comprehensive sign plan 

for Touchmark. The amendment proposes (3) additional signs for the onsite restaurant, The Finn. 
The first is an internally illuminated sign mounted on the restaurant’s balcony. The second sign will 
be on the south side and is a 4 foot tall monument side. The third sign will re-use an existing 
directional sign on the north side. Total square footage of amended signage is 66 square feet.  Staff 
recommends approval of the amendment.  
 

Commissioner Lazzell asked whether the illuminated signage would be dark sky compliant. Mr. 
Worley confirmed that it would. Commissioner Gambogi asked whether both The Finn restaurant 
and fitness center are open to the public; Mr. Worley clarified that the restaurant is open to the 
public. Commissioner Gambogi questioned whether the proposed south side sign would be better 
placed at the entrance to the parking lot. Mr. Worley explained that the proposed signage will be 
visible, as is, to entering traffic due to the existing roundabout. 

 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Lazzell to approve CSP20-001. The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Gambogi and passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
 

IV. SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS 
None 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
  
     Chair Michelman adjourned the meeting at 11:35 am 
 
 
 
Kaylee Nunez, Recording 
Secretary 

 Don Michelman, Chair 

 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEMO 
' . ... " . . . . . . ' .. . ~ ~ - . 

MEETING DATE: August 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM: SITE20-004, Site Plan Review for Phase 1 of the Grande Vita 
Development to include an integrated aging in place facility that will provide independent 
living units, assisted living units, and memory care on an approximate 8.96 acre parcel. 
Zoning: Business Regional (Business Regional); Property Owner: Ehret Properties LLC, 
Burro Creek LLC, and Broyco Properties LLC; Applicant: J. Brown- Kevin B. Howard 
Architects; Site APN: .103-15-160A and 103-15-165; Location: Northwest Corner of E 
Robin Drive and SR 69. 

Approved By: Date: 
Director: Bryn Stotler 

Planning Manager: George Worley 

Community Planner: · Tammy DeWitt 

Item Summary 

The site .is located on the northwest corner of E Robin Drive and State Route 69 and 
consists of two lots, to be combined, creating one 8.96 acre parcel. The site is zoned 
Business Regional (BR) which allows for the proposed mixed use development consisting · 
of assisted living, memory care, hotel and offices. The approval of an Administrative Land. 
Split/Combination application will be required prior to issuance of building permits. 

The proposed site plan is for Phase 1 of the project consisting of a proposed 3 story · 
independent living, Assisted Living and Memory Care facility. Per the site plan, the facility 
is an integrated Aging-In-Place facility consisting of 134 assisted living beds and related 
services all in one integrated center. 

The Future Phase 2 (Medical Offices) and Phase 3 (Hotel) will be market driven and will 
be reviewed for compliance with current codes at the time of their applications. 

Background 

The property is currently vacant. In the past, other proposals have been discussed, but none were 
submitted for approval. 



AGENDA ITEM: SITE20-004, Site Plan Review for Phase 1 of the Grande Vita
Development to include an integrated aging in place facility that will provide independent
living units, assisted living units, and memory care on an approximate 8.96 acre parcel.
Zoning: Business Regional (Business Regional); Property Owner: Ehret Properties LLC,
Burro Creek LLC, and Broyco Properties LLC; Applicant: J. Brown- Kevin B. Howard
Architects; Site APN: 103-15-160A and 103-15-165; Location: Northwest Corner of E
Robin Drive and SR 69.

2

Site Plan Review Criteria
Per Land Development Code (LDC) section 9.8.5/Site Plan Review Criteria, the following
criteria are applicable to the proposed project.

9.8.5.B. Building lot and setback requirements
With a lot combination proposed of the two lots, the buildings, as shown on the proposed
Site Plan, meet required setbacks: 10 foot front and rear yards, and 7 foot side yards.

9.8.5.F. Internal Circulation, public, private or emergency
The proposed driveway that meets Code requirement of 20 feet in width, and provides access
through the site for all proposed uses.

9.8.5.G. Landscaping, screening and buffering
The proposed project has been designed to provide a buffer between the adjacent residential
neighborhood and easy access off the highway. The property will be terraced and landscaped
adjacent to the residential properties to provide a buffer between the uses.

9.8.5.J. Outdoor lighting standards of Sec. 6.11
Will require details at time of building permit application submittal and will need to meet all dark
sky requirements.

9.8.5.K. Parking and maneuvering areas
The proposed project includes the parking required for the proposed assisted living, medical
offices, and hotel. Assisted living facilities require.5 spaces per bed and 1 per employee per shift;
medical offices require 1 space per 150 sq. ft; office spaces require 1 per 300 sq. ft; and hotel
requires 1 per unit.

9.8.5.M. Public road or street access with proposed street grades
Site access is proposed off of E Robin Drive and State Route 69. A TIA (Traffic Impact Analysis)
will be required that has been approved by the City of Prescott and ADOT prior to any permits
being issued on the property.

All other site design criteria appear to meet the Land Development Code requirements.
The project is located within the Commercial Corridor Overlay per Section 5.3 of the LDC.
This Overlay provides additional development criteria to promote quality commercial
development that is compatible with surrounding natural areas and developed residential
neighborhoods.

Residential Protection Standards (Section 6.13 of the LDC) apply to this project since it is
a new nonresidential project adjacent to residential property. The applicant has provided
an increased landscape buffer on the west side of the parcel that is adjacent to the
residential area which meets the requirements.



AGENDA ITEM: SITE20-004, Site Plan Review for Phase 1 of the Grande Vita
Development to include an integrated aging in place facility that will provide independent
living units, assisted living units, and memory care on an approximate 8.96 acre parcel.
Zoning: Business Regional (Business Regional); Property Owner: Ehret Properties LLC,
Burro Creek LLC, and Broyco Properties LLC; Applicant: J. Brown- Kevin B. Howard
Architects; Site APN: 103-15-160A and 103-15-165; Location: Northwest Corner of E
Robin Drive and SR 69.

3

Attachments

1. Narrative
2. Aerial Location Map
3. Zoning Map
4. Property Pictures
5. Site Plans

Recommended Action:  MOVE to recommend approval of Site Plan SITE20-004, Grande Vita
Development Phase 1.



 
 

8339 N. Oracle Rd., Suite 110, Oro Valley, Arizona 85704    Phone 520.322.6800    Fax 520.322.6812 

 
 
 
 

                       June 23, 2020 

 
Attention: 
 City of Prescott 

Community Development Department 
201 South Cortez Prescott, AZ 86303 

   
Regarding: 

Grande Vita Development 
Parcels: 103-15-160a & 103-15-165 
Address: 4746 E Robin Drive to 4740 E Robin Drive  
 
 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 
 
Kevin B. Howard Architects, on behalf of Grande Vita Enterprises and Manjit Pawar, 
are pleased to submit for your consideration a Planned Area Development (PAD), and 
Site Plan for 8.96 acres located along Hwy 69 and Robin Drive in the City of Prescott, 
Arizona. This is a proposal for a campus style development to include medical offices, 
a hotel, and an integrated aging in place facility that will provide independent living 
units, assisted living units, and memory care. 
 
The proposed uses conform to the existing property zoning of Business Regional 
(BR), and no rezoning will be required. The existing property requires a Planned Area 
Development (PAD) to provide a full master plan for the property. Our proposal is a 
phased sustainable mixed-use development incorporating a mix of healthcare uses 
that will revolutionize the current model for aging in place. The PAD overlay is 
provided to clarify development regulations such as building height, setbacks, and 
landscape buffers. The PAD overlay will enable the project to become a cohesive, 
efficient mixed-use development with an emphasis on providing unique housing 
opportunities, skilled services, and recreational opportunities to aging residents of 
Prescott. 
 
The development concept is simple in that it transforms the typical separation of 
residential care services (i.e. independent/ assisted living, memory care, recreation, 
etc.) into one integrated living center that changes and adapts to the healthcare needs 
of each patient. Responsive care and flexible unit design allow residents to stay in the 
same place they have grown accustomed to, surrounded by the people, places and 
things that feel familiar to them, ultimately making a place feel like home. The closest 
example is a continuing care retirement community, but that type of development still 
requires aging residents to move to a different building within the overall community if 
their condition changes. 
 
The property is currently undeveloped vacant land with a slope to the west.  Current 
access to the property will be from the road to the south, Robin Drive. The adjacent 
properties are zoned residential. The project will be visible from Highway 69. 
 



 
 

8339 N. Oracle Rd., Suite 110, Oro Valley, Arizona 85704    Phone 520.322.6800    Fax 520.322.6812 

This promotes a mix of commercial hospitality, medical office, and integrated 
residential care uses. There is substantial demand for an innovative independent living 
center that provides care that responds to ever-evolving healthcare needs rather than 
relocating residents based on the level of care needed. This demand has directed the 
need to develop the project in phases. The first portion (Phase I) will be the Age-in-
Place facility. It will also include all necessary grading and landscaping at the buffer 
edges of the property. Phase II will include the medical offices and its connected 
parking. Lastly, Phase III will be the future hotel and its necessary parking. Phase II & 
III will be pre-graded at the end of Phase I. 
 
The project site and proposed uses are ideally suited for this location as it is a buffer 
between residential neighborhoods and easy access off the highway. The project will 
provide a level of medical care typically found in residential care centers.  
 
On May 14th, 2020, we received preliminary review from staff on the proposal 
progress. The meeting was positive and provided invaluable information at an early 
stage of development. The comments raised by Planning and Zoning staff have been 
address in the following manner: 
 

 Residential Protection standards (LDC sect 6.13) have been reflected 
in an increased landscape buffer as shown on landscape plans and 
sheet A003. 

 Retaining walls have met the 36’-0” max cut requirement. See civil 
engineering grading plan. 

 Parking has been updated to conform to the requirements of LDC 6.2.5. 
276 spaces are required and provided. 

 We are in conformance of the design requirements of the Commercial 
Corridor Overlay LDC 5.3 

 Landscape design is provided as part of the submittal. 
 Outdoor lighting will be provided at the time of permitting. 
 Bike racks have been provided and shown on sheet A002. 
 No fencing is planned beyond hardscape walls shown. 
 Sign permits will be provided at the time of permitting. 

  
This Site Review is only for Phase I as shown on the plans. Future phases of the 
master plan will follow the listed height requirements, size, and room counts for 
parking. This phasing of the project is market driven.  
 
The complete master planned campus and cohesive synergetic uses of the proposed 
design will enhance the City of Prescott as a whole community. Kevin B Howard 
Architects looks forward to working with the City of Prescott in the execution of this 
development. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Joseph E. Brown, RA LEED AP 
Senior Associate Architect 

 



Subject 
Property 



Subject 
Property 



Subject 
Property 

Subject 
Property 



View from SR 69 looking West 



View from Robin Drive looking East 





























--~J~ 
CITY OP PRESCOTT 

EJJ7!;_,jJJ-&,!ldiMlv PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEMO 

MEETING DATE: August 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM: SUP20-002, Request for Special Use Permit to permit proposed Banner 
Hospital patient wing a height of up to 75 feet. Applicant is Banner Health; Property owner 
is Whispering Rock, LLC; Site APN is 106-02-398. 

Approved By: Date: 
Director: Bryn Stotler 

Planning Manager: George Worley 

Community Planner: 

Item Summary 

This is a request for a Special Use Permit (SUP) to permit a portion of the proposed 
Banner Hospital to have a height of up to 75 feet. The site is zoned Business Regional 
(BR) which has a standard allowed height of 50 feet for commercial structures, but has 
provisions to allow a building height of up to 100 feet through the SUP process. 

Background 

The proposed hospital site is located in the Whispering Rock commercial subdivision. The 
Area was annexed into the City with the understanding that most, if not all, of the eventual 
uses would be medical and related commercial uses. The area was rezoned in 2019 to the 
current BR zoning classification. 

The BR zoning classification was created to permit heavier commercial uses along major 
and heavily travelled roadways. The maximum permitted height of commercial buildings in 
this district is 100 feet. Any proposed building height above 50 feet requires a separate 
review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and an approval by the City Council by 
grant of a SUP. This was incorporated into the Land Development Code to permit additional 
oversight by Council. 

SUP's are not variances. Applicant's need not prove a hardship, only the benefit of the 
additional height in the conduct of the business anticipated in the building. SU P's may be 
granted, modified or denied at Council's discretion. Impacts on nearby residential and 
commercial uses often factors into the decision by Council. 



AGENDA ITEM: SUP20-002, Request for Special Use Permit to permit proposed Banner 
Hospital patient wing a height of up to 75 feet. Applicant is Banner Health; Property owner 
is Whispering Rock, LLC; Site APN is 106-02-398. 
 

2 

Banner Health Request 
 
Banner Health proposes to construct a full function hospital at the Whispering Rock site. The 
project will include the main hospital building and a medical office/health center building 
constructed in three phases with the hospital being phase 2. The hospital site layout is 
roughly an “L” shape, with the north leg containing patient rooms. This is the portion of the 
building that requires the 75 foot height approval.  
 
The current anticipated height is 71 feet for this portion of the building, however there are 
some variables in design that could require minor adjustments to the height, thus the 75 foot 
maximum height request. It should be noted that while the overall building height could be 
as much as 75 feet, the patient room wing is still only four stories. The height is a function of 
the need to accommodate additional height on each floor for medical gas, plumbing, 
ventilation and other medical infrastructure unique to hospital designs. Extending the patient 
wing horizontally to accommodate the same number of rooms would eliminate a significant 
number of parking spaces required by the Land Development Code. It could also require 
that the orientation be flipped to place the patient wing to the south where the parcel is wider 
and the main hospital wing, with all of its activity, to the north closer to the nearby Pinion 
Oaks residential neighborhood. 
 
As noted above, the site layout places the proposed patient wing at the north side of the 
hospital and aligned perpendicular to Willow Creek Road. This east-west alignment was 
done to reduce the visual obstruction of the granite dells rock formations as seen from the 
nearby Pinon Oaks residential neighborhood. The main hospital wing and the majority of 
activity will be south of the patient wing. The main hospital wing also includes a “helistop” 
(an out-going only helipad) south of the patient wing and east of the hospital. This is for the 
occasional need for a patient to be air transported from Banner to another hospital or trauma 
center. The helistop is the subject of a separate Conditional Use Permit to be heard by the 
Board of Adjustment on August 20th. 
 
Staff Comments and Next Steps 
 
 After review and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, this request 
will be forwarded to City Council for final action to grant or deny a maximum height of up to 
75 feet.  
 
Attachments:    
 

1. Aerial vicinity map 
2. Site plan and elevation renderings 
3. Special Use Permit review criteria 
4. Applicant narrative  
5. Neighborhood comments received to-date 

 



AGENDA ITEM: SUP20-002, Request for Special Use Permit to permit proposed Banner 
Hospital patient wing a height of up to 75 feet. Applicant is Banner Health; Property owner 
is Whispering Rock, LLC; Site APN is 106-02-398. 
 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Action:     

MOVE to recommend approval, approval with modifications or denial of SUP20-002 a 
Special Use Permit allowing a building height of up to 75 feet.  
 

 
 

 











9.9.5 / Special Use Review Criteria 

The City Council may approve an application for a special use where it reasonably determines 
that there will be no significant negative impact upon residents of surrounding property or upon 
the public. The City Council shall consider the following criteria in its review: 

A.    Effect on Environment 

The location, size, design, and operation characteristics of the proposed use shall not be 
detrimental to the health, welfare, and safety of the surrounding neighborhood or its occupants, 
nor be substantially or permanently injurious to neighboring property. 

B.    Compatible with Surrounding Area 

The proposed site plan, circulation plan, and schematic architectural designs shall be 
harmonious with the character of the surrounding area with respect to scale, height, landscaping 
and screening, lot coverage, and density. 

C.    External Impacts Minimized 

The proposed use shall not have negative impacts on existing uses in the area and in the City 
through the creation of noise, glare, fumes, dust, smoke, vibration, fire hazard, or other injurious 
or noxious impact. The applicant shall provide adequate mitigation responses to these impacts. 

D.    Infrastructure Impacts Minimized 

The proposed use shall not have negative impacts on existing uses in the area and in the City 
through impacts on public infrastructure such as roads, parking facilities and water and sewer 
systems, and on public services such as police and fire protection and solid waste collection, 
and the ability of existing infrastructure and services to provide services adequately.  

E.    Consistent with General Plan and Code  

The proposed use will be consistent with the purposes of this LDC, the General Plan, Area 
Plans, and any other statutes, ordinances or policies that may be applicable, and will support 
rather than interfere with the uses permitted outright in the zone in which it is located. 

F.    Parcel Size 

The proposed use may be required to have additional land area, in excess of the minimum lot 
area otherwise required by the underlying zoning district, as necessary to ensure adequate 
mitigation of impacts on surrounding land uses and the zoning district. 

G.    Site Plan 

The proposed use shall comply with the procedures and requirements of Sec. 9.8, Site Plan 
Review. 

 

https://www.codepublishing.com/AZ/Prescott/#!/PrescottLDC/PrescottLDC09.html#9.8






 

 
 
 

Banner Medical Center Campus Lot C3, Whispering Rock 
 

 

LOT C3 

LOT C9 

LOT C2 LOT C1 

LOT C5 

LOT C8 

LOT C6/7 LOT C4 

Whispering Rock Development 
 

PATIENT TOWER 
PHASE 3 

PATIENT TOWER 
PHASE 2 

HOSPITAL 
PHASE 2 

Lot C3 Conceptual Development Plan 

Special Use Permit For Height Increase Development Zone 

W
EL

LN
ES

S 
R

O
A

D
 

WHISPERING ROCK ROAD 



 

 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST:   

Banner Health is requesting a Special Use Permit to increase the building height to 75 feet for a four-story 

patient tower for the planned medical center hospital within a designated area on Lot C3 of the Site area as 

denoted on sheet A-1, Proposed Limits of Special Use Permit Height Increase (75’).  The Height Increase 

Zone area is requested to provide flexibility for final design of the hospital and development approvals. 

 

SPECIAL USE REVIEW CRITERIA 

Effect on Environment 

The Whispering Rock master planned development has been designed with a primary focus on health and 

wellness facilities to meet the growing local and regional demand for the complete spectrum of medical uses 

including a senior health living residential environment.  Within the 80 acre Whispering Rock development, 

the central core of this health and wellness community is the planned Banner Health medical center with a 

30,000 square feet health center clinic and a 156 bed hospital to be developed over time to address the 

communities’ healthcare needs.  The Banner Health medical center development is located at the center of 

the Whispering Rock commercial community with related medical use facilities planned around the medical 

center.   

 The medical center planned on Lot C3 encompasses approximately 20 acres, which represents 26% 

of planned Whispering Rock development.   

 Based on the operational efficiency requirements for Banner Health designed hospitals, the medical 

center facility will require a four-story patient tower design with a development height limit up to 75 

feet to accommodate the patient tower.   

 The Lot C3 medical center planned Height Increase Development Zone for the patient tower facility 

(180,000 square feet) represents less than twenty percent (20%) of the lot site area. The 75 foot 

Height Increase Development Zone for the planned patient tower development is being proposed to 

provide flexibility within the designated site zone area for final site plan design and City Site Plan 

Review and approval. The actual four-story patient tower footprint will be approximately 42,000 

square feet at full buildout representing less than five percent (5%) of the site area.  

 The Special Use Permit (“SUP”) patient tower Height Increase Development Zone is buffered by 

parking and landscape area setbacks from all property lines in addition to fifty-two foot (52’) 

landscaped drainage tract along the complete Willow Creek Road lot frontage.   

 The Whispering Rock medical center development is isolated from all surrounding adjacent 

neighborhoods with its own internal loop road providing direct access from Willow Creek Road. 

 The planned medical center with the four-story patient tower will provide no detrimental, safety or 

permanent negative impact to neighboring properties based on based on facility distance spacing 

from and access separation from the adjacent planned Whispering Rock development. 

Lot C3 Conceptual Hospital West Elevation 
 

71‘-0” 

60‘-0” 

31‘-4” 

19‘-4” 



 

 

 

Compatible with Surrounding Area 

The proposed conceptual medical center development plan has been configured based on Banner Health’s 

standardized medical center campus design principles to address the operational needs of multiple campus 

user groups (acute care in-patients and visitors, out-patients, medical staff and professionals, medical clinic 

patients, emergency service providers, and facility support services).  The medical campus configuration and 

placement of on-site improvements are designed and structured to address the various access requirements 

of the various medical center users: 

 The medical center site is surround by public roadways providing several access points to different 

campus facilities for enhanced wayfinding: 

o The Willow Creek main entrance provides access for in-patient hospital users/visitors along 

with separate access to the out-patient emergency department for users. 

o The signalized Hass Boulevard provides access to the planned health center provides 

emergency vehicle access to the emergency department and facility services vehicles without 

driving through the campus. 

o User friendly parking including handicap parking is provided in proximity to facility entrance 

locations with designated safe walkways leading to those facility entrance points.  

o Once a site user arrives on the medical center site they are able to circulate throughout the 

campus to access all facility on the campus internal loop roadways without the need to use 

the perimeter public roadways. 

 

 The medical center facilities will be designed to harmonious with the surrounding community 

developments and natural physical features of the adjacent area. The following are some of the 

Banner Health medical center feature that can be observed on numerous medical center campus 

throughout the Arizona: 

o Building orientations and massing will be designed to create multiple levels to blend with 

natural features of the adjacent terrain along with the use of various quality building materials 

of different colors and textures to provide a pleasing scalable visual impact. 

o The four-story patient tower will be orientated in an east/west direction to capture enhanced 

patient room views to the north and south while minimizing direct solar heat gain and glare. 

With this proposed patient tower orientation, the visual impact will be less than 4,000 square 

feet of building surface mass above the current zoning height limit of 50 feet to obstruct views 

to the east from Willow Creek Road.  

o Mechanical equipment will be screened from view and this screening is designed to provide 

mitigation of noise transfer to adjacent properties. 

o Parking areas are designed with landscape to provide a welcoming environment that provides 

shading and screen wall at the site perimeter to mitigate impacts to surrounding 

developments. 

o The planned medical center facilities at full-buildout will provide lot coverage of approximately 

18%.  Combining all site improvements, the medical center will provide approximately 130,000 

square feet of landscaped open space.    

 



 

 

 

External Impacts Minimized 

The proposed medical center development use will provide benefit to the Greater Prescott and regional area 

by giving enhanced access to additional healthcare services in the community.  The hospital patient tower 

height increase to 75 feet in the Height Increase Development Zone will not create any negative impacts on 

other existing and planned development uses in the immediate and surrounding area.  The east-west 

orientation of the patient tower is designed to minimize visual obstructions, any potential reflective glare and 

solar impacts to and from the planned facility.  In addition, the patient tower will be designed with 

screen/shading elements for patient tower window openings further reducing the potential impact of the 

facility to the adjacent environments.  With the Willow Creek Road added fifty-two feet (52’) landscaped 

drainage feature all along the Lot C3 frontage, there is an added setback distance that will minimize the scale 

of the four-story patient tower to the passing by community.  

Infrastructure Impacts Minimized  

The proposed medical center development and the required building height increase to 75 feet in the Height 

Increase Development Zone for the planned patient tower, allows for the fourth-story of the hospital facility 

and will have no negative impacts on the planned public infrastructure related to roadways, water and 

sanitary sewer area systems.  The Whispering Rock 80 acre development has been designed and is being 

improved with all required public and private infrastructure improvements and facilities to support the planned 

medical center.  The medical center campus vehicular and pedestrian access points have been designed to 

address the on-campus user circulation needs and requirements.  The impact on the area public services 

including police and fire protection will actually be provide enhanced support from the planned medical center 

in the local area.   

Consistent With The General Plan and Zoning and Development Code  

The proposed medical center development and the required building height increase to 75 feet in the Height 

Increase Development Zone for the planned patient tower is consistent with City of Prescott General and 

Area Plan, Zoning District, Land Development Code and other jurisdictional statues and policies: 

 Area and General Plan City of Prescott Land Use - Commercial -Employment.  The planned 

Whispering Rock medical center development use is consistent with the General Plan designation as 

a commercial use and employment center.  The medical center will provide over a 100 plus 

professional and staff employment opportunities once developed.  In addition, the medical center will 

serve as a creator of other area support services and employment opportunities. 

 Zoning District Designation - Business Regional (“BR”) - The BR District land use designation is 

consistent with the planned medical center use including a hospital.  The BR District also allows for 

the opportunity to increase the building height limit from 50 feet to a maximum of 100 feet through the 

Special Use Permit process.  The request for a height increase to 75 feet for a designated area of Lot 

C3 is consistent with the zoning code allowable process.  By allowing the building height increase to 

75 feet for the four-story patient tower, the operational efficiencies of the hospital will be increase 

including enhanced medical staff logistics and patient care.  

 Land Development Code (“LDC’) - The planned medical center development concept site plan is 

consistent with the City of Prescott current LDC standards and design requirements.  As the medical 



center progresses through the development process, the design of the medical center will follow the 

City of Prescott standard requirements of the LDC, which final campus design being finalized at  the 

time a final campus site plan and improvement plan is submitted for final Site Plan and Facility Design 

Review. 

Parcel Size 

The requested building height increase to 75 feet within the designated Height Increase Development Zone 

for the proposed four-story patient tower will require no adjustment to the parcel size of Lot C3.  With the 

patient tower height increase for the medical center hospital, all the requirements for building setbacks and 

lot coverages will require no adjustments and the planned improvements are consistent with the City of 

Prescott LCD requirements. 

Site Plan 

The proposed Whispering Rock medical center development conceptual Site Plan and the requested building 

height increase to 75 feet with the SUP Height Increase Development Zone shall comply with the procedures 

and requirements of Section 9.8. Site Plan Review.  

Expiration/Revocation Of Approval 

The locating of a new area medical center is unique to other types of business development.  It required an 

analysis of a community and regional area to identify locations which meet the healthcare needs of existing 

and expanding populations and demographics.  For a medical center campus site to viable for the long term 

development it must have assurances of the following: 

 Transportation roadway infrastructure that provides good local and regional access to site location. 

 Utility infrastructure (water, sanitary sewer, communications, gas, and electrical) to meet the needs of 

a medical center with redundancies. 

 Site topography that allows development of facilities and site improvements to meet the grade 

requirement for a medical center for both facility and site parking. 

 FAA air-space clearances for the development of an on-site helipad for patient transport when 

patients require higher levels of medical care to address higher levels of acute care than can be 

provided at the medical center. 

 An existing and growing population metric with demographic medical needs that the medical center 

can serve over a fifty year (50) plus time continuum.  

 Current approved site development entitlements that provide the assurance today that future medical 

center development can occur as the market demand drives the medical center development timing. 

With these site requirements listed above, for Lot C3, Whispering Rock site, only the special approvals for a 

Special Use Permit (height increase) and Condition Use Permit for an (on-site helipad) still need approval 

with a special exception that extends the term of the approval beyond the one year limit.  The process of 

planning and developing a medical center project is a multi-year process with the development of campus 

facilities happening in phases as driven by patient user demand.  But none of the long term planning process 

can be started without the approval assurances that the term of the approvals allows for adequate time to 

complete planning to be followed by completion of Phase I of the development. 

Requested Initial Term Of Approval 

Banner Health is requesting for the Lot C3, Whispering Rock site that the initial term of the 75 foot Height 

Increase Development Zone (as depicted in Sheet A-1, Height Increase Development Zone) SUP be 

approved for a seven (7) years term in which to vest SUP, with the permanent vesting of the SUP Height 



Increase Development Zone approval to occur at the time the first development construction permit is 

approved and granted for the initial phase of facility development on Lot C3, Whispering Rock. 
























































































	PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
	SITE20-004SignedSRCoverPage
	SUP Justification Text-2
	SUP Justification Text-2

